AGENDA FOR THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING
I ‘ I = ‘ Travis County Facilities Corporation
502 E. Highland Mall Bivd., Suite 106-B

Travis County Facilities Corporation Austin. Texas 78752
H

April 7, 2022
9:30 A.M.

The Board of Directors will meet at 502 East Highland Mall Bivd., 106-B Austin, TX 78752.

The Board of Directors will consider and may take action on the following items:

I. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL / CONFIRMATION OF QUORUM

MISSION STATEMENT: The Travis County Facilities Corporation, Texas, preserves and develops
affordable housing and vibrant communities, which enhance the quality of life for all.

Il. CONSENT AGENDA
A. Approval of the Minutes from the February 9, 2022 Regular Meeting

lil. PUBLIC FORUM/ CITIZEN COMMUNICATION
e Anyone desiring to discuss or comment on items directly related to the TCFC is always welcome.
e Ifthe item is deemed related to an Agenda item at the current meeting, the presiding officer will inform the citizen
that pending action(s) remain.
e  Speakers must sign-in prior to the start of the Board Meeting by emailing Debbie Honeycutt at
Debbie.Honeycuti@traviscountyix.qov
e  Maximum three-minute limit per speaker.

IV. ACTION ITEMS
A. Election of Officers (President and Vice President)

B. Resolution No. TCFC-2022-01 | To Approve the negotiation of a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between
Travis County Facilities Corporation of Travis County and Marcus Organization
(“Developer”) by the Executive Vice President, Director of Real Estate
Development, and the officers of the Corporation for participation in South First
Apartments located at 6311 S. First St. Austin, TX; and Authorize the execution of
such MOU.

V. REGULAR AGENDA
A Real Estate Development - Robert Onion / Keith Hoffpauir
B. TCFC Set-Aside Funds

VI. NEW/ UNIFISHED BUSINESS
A Discussion and consideration regarding Board of Directors issues and concerns

VIl. ADJOURNMENT
Agenda for the Regular Board Meeting | April 7, 2022



TRAVIS COUNTY FACILITIES CORPORATION
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
REGULAR MEETING
502 East Highland Mall Blvd., Suite 106-B
Austin, Texas 78752
February 9, 2022
10:00 a.m.

MINUTES
The Travis County Facilities Corporation held a Regular Board of Directors Meeting at 502 East
Highland Mall Blvd., 106-B Austin, Texas 78752 and via Zoom on the above date.

https://us02web.zoom.us/i/831652022407pwd=V INHSGJraUtOQW5xenlWVnR0Q110dz09

Dial by your location: https://us02web.zoom.us/w/kcSOHGPMO63
Meeting ID: 831 6520 2240
Password: 019426

I. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL / CONFIRMATION OF QUORUM
A quorum was established, and President John Hernandez called the meeting to order at 10:53 a.m.
Roll Call of Directors: President John Hernandez, Vice President Ann Denton, Director Eddie Karam,
Director Wilmer Roberts. Guests: Cliff Blount with Naman, Howell, Smith & Lee PLLC. Staff in

Attendance: CEO/Executive Director Patrick Howard, Director of Real Estate Development Robert
Onion, Sr. Administrative Assistant Debbie Honeycutt, Director of Finance Subra Narayanaiyer.

CEO/Executive Director Patrick Howard certified the quorum.

I. CONSENT AGENDA
A. Approval of the Minutes from the September 3, 2021 Regular Meeting
B. Approval of the Minutes from the October 7, 2021 Regular Meeting
C. Approval of the Minutes from the December 8, 2021 Regular Meeting
D. Approval of the Minutes from the January 6, 2022 Annual Meeting

Vice President Ann Denton made a motion to approve Items IL.A., I1.B., II.C. and IL.D. Director
Wilmer Roberts seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.

III. PUBLIC FORUM / CITIZEN COMMUNICATION

e Anyone desiring to discuss or comment on items directly related to the TCFC is always welcome.

e If the item is deemed related to an Agenda item at the current meeting, the presiding officer will
inform the citizen
that pending action(s) remain.

e Speakers must sign-in prior to the start of the Board Meeting by emailing Omar Nesbit at
Ormar.Nesbit@traviscountytx.gov

e Maximum three-minute limit per speaker.

There were none at that time.

TCFC 02/09/2022 REGULAR MEETING



IV. REGULAR AGENDA
A. Discussion / update Caseybridge Apartments

Director of Real Estate Development Robert Onion presented Item IV. A.

December 8, 2021 staff provided the Board with a discussion item for a New PFC Structure for Travis
County Facilities Corporation. The new financing structure involves issuing Essential Function Tax
Exempt Bonds for the purpose of financing Affordable Housing. The basic difference between this
financing structure and what has been proposed in the past is that the development is completely
financed from Bond proceeds and no equity is required. This structure represents a very highly
leverage transaction which would not allow for the traditional lower income set-asides of 100% at
60% as seen in Private Activity Bond/4 % tax credits transaction. January 6, 2022 Jim Plummer of
Bracewell Law Firm addressed the Board and discussed the differences between this type of financing
and previous structure.

Proposed Development: The subject property is located East of IH 35 and just West of 183 at the
intersection of Ben White Blvd (Hwy 71) and Caseybridge. The address of the two tracts are 3111 and
3112 Caseybridge.

Affordable Set Asides: The property is being developed using Ordinance No. 20190509-027
Residential Affordable Housing Development Bonus Program, also referred to as “Affordability
Unlocked” Program. This program atlows for a greater density of units per acre in exchange for

affordability component. The rent set aside must be at 60% of AMI for 50% of the units with at least
20% of those units at 50% of AMI.

V. NEW/UNFINISHED BUSINESS
A. Discussion and consideration regarding Board of Directors issues and concems

There were none at that time.

V. ADJOURNMENT

Mr. Roberts made a motion to adjourn. Director Eddie Karam seconded the motion, which
passed unanimously.

The Board adjourned at 11:08 a.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Patrick B. Howard, CEO / Executive Director

TCFC 02/09/2022 REGULAR MEETING



TCFEC

Travis County Facilities Corporation

TCFC Action Item IV.B.
April 7, 2022

Resolution No. TCFC-2022-01: To Approve the negotiation of a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between Travis
County Facilities Corporation of Travis County (TCFC) and Marcus Organization (‘Developer’) by the Executive Vice
President, Director of Real Estate Development, and the officers of the Corporation for participation in South First
Apartments located at 6311 S. First St. Austin, TX; and To Authorize the execution of such MOU.

Background Information: After corresponding with Jonathan Marcus of the Marcus organization for approximately a year
and half, on July 8, 2020, the organization presented a request to participate in a Public Facilities Corp structure with Travis
County Facilities Corporation. The Marcus Organization has been in business for over 60 years with experience in design,
contract management and construction of real estate. They have completed over 30 million square feet of Warehouse,
Corporate Office, and Hospitals. They have developed 2,100 residential units with an addition 2000 units in the pipeline
in New York, Texas, and Florida. (Please see additional detail in the requested brochure attached).

The subject property is located at 6311 South First Street which is south of Stassney and North of William Cannon west
of IH 35 in Austin, Texas. (See Location Map). The subject site contains approximately 3.8 acres of land. The proposed
improvements will consist of 51 efficiency units, 191 One Bedrooms, 12 Two Bedrooms, and 4 Office/1 Bedroom types.
The total net rental area is 160,603 square feet. The total number of units is 258 units. (See Attached: Design, Elevations,
Floor plans, Unit Mix, and Amenities) This increased density is allowable under the Vertical Mixed-Use zoning provided by
the City of Austin. This concept is considered “Workforce Housing™ and is strategically located on South First Street and
will feature a bus stop on the site which will allow direct access via Metro Bus service, which offers public transit options
into Downtown and throughout the City of Austin. Affordable Set Asides will be 5% at 50% AMI; 5% at 60% AMI; 41% at
80% of AMI, with the balance at Market Rents.

Total Cost to Build will be $61,000,000 or $236,434 per unit with the construction cost of $40,800,000 being $138,139.53
per unit.

The Travis County Facilities Corporation (TCFC) will be providing a 100% property tax exemption and a sales tax
exemption on the materials used to construct the proposed improvements. In exchange, TCFC will receive an origination
fee; a percentage of the Developer fee; a construction administration fee; a capital event fee; and an annual ground lease
fee once the property has stabilized. Stabilization is projected to be in 2027. The Memorandum of Understanding outlines
these fee structures and addresses the subsequent sale of the Lease hold interest.

Requested Action: Consideration and take appropriate action regarding Resolution No. TCFC-2022-01: To Approve the
negotiation of a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between Travis County Facilities Corporation of Travis County
(TCFC) and Marcus Organization (“Developer”) by the Executive Vice President, Director of Real Estate Development,
and the officers of the Corporation for participation in South First Apartments located at 6311 S. First St. Austin, TX; and
To Authorize the execution of such MOU.

Alternate Option: The Board of Directors could elect Not to Approve the following Resolution:
e Resolution No. TCFC-2022-01

Fiscal Impact:
This transaction will greatly enhance the financial position of TCFC through the collection of Origination fees, Developer's
Fees, cash flow and sale or refinance of the property in the future.



TCI-C

Trovis County Facilities Corporation

Attachments:
A. Development Package
B. Resolution No. TCFC-2022-01

Prepared by:
Robert Onion — Director of Real Estate Development

Approval:

Pk 8. Howard

Patrick B. Howard, Executive Vice President




-

ll:\

Sy

Travis County Facilities Corporation

TCFC Action item IV.B.
April 7, 2022

Resolution No. TCFC-2022-01: To Approve the negotiation of a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between Travis
County Facilities Corporation of Travis County (TCFC) and Marcus Organization (“Developer”) by the Executive Vice
President, Director of Real Estate Development, and the officers of the Corporation for participation in South First
Apartments located at 6311 S. First St. Austin, TX; and To Authorize the execution of such MOU.

RESOLUTION INDUCING THE SOFI AT 6311 APARTMENTS IN
PARTNERSHIP WITH MARCUS BUILDING COMPANY, TO BE
LOCATED AT 6311 S. 15T STREET, AUSTIN, TEXAS; AND
AUTHORIZING THE NEGOTIATION AND EXECUTION OF A TERM
SHEET; AND OTHER MATTERS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of Travis County, Texas (the “Authority”), has, pursuant to the Texas Public
Facility Corporations Act, Chapter 303, Texas Local Government Code, as amended (the “Act"), approved and
created Travis County Facilities Corporation, a nonstock, nonprofit public facility corporation (the “Corporation”);

WHEREAS, the Corporation, on behalf of the Authority, is empowered to finance the costs of public facilities that will
provide decent, safe, and sanitary housing at affordable prices for residents of Travis County, Texas (the “County");

WHEREAS, Marcus Building Company, Inc. or its affiliate (the “User”), has requested that (i) the Corporation
finance the acquisition, construction, and equipping of a proposed 258-unit multifamily housing facility to be located
at 6311 S. 15t Street, Austin, Texas and to be known as the SOFI at 6311 Apartments (the “Project”);

WHEREAS, this Resolution shall constitute the Corporation’s preliminary, non-binding commitment, subject to the
terms hereof, to proceed;

WHEREAS, the Corporation and the User or an affiliate or affiliates thereof will define their mutual relationship in a
Term Sheet (the “Term Sheet’);

WHEREAS, the User has requested authorization to make all filings necessary to obtain and maintain equity and
debt financing for the Project; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Corporation (the “Board”) has determined that it is in the public interest
and to the benefit of the citizens and residents of the County for the various entities to enter into the transactions
described above so that the User may construct the Project; now, therefore,

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF TRAVIS COUNTY FACILITIES CORPORATION THAT:

Section 1. Subject to the terms hereof, the Corporation agrees that it will



Travis County Facilities Corporation

(a) cooperate with the User with respect to the Project, and, if arrangements therefor satisfactory to the
User and the Corporation can be made, take such action and authorize the execution of such documents and take
such further action as may be necessary or advisable for the authorization, execution, and delivery of any contracts
or agreements deemed necessary and desirable by the User or the Corporation in connection with the Project
(collectively, the “Contracts”), providing among other things for financing, acquisition, construction, equipping, and
improvement of the Project; and use, operation, and maintenance of the Project, all as shall be authorized, required,
or permitted by law and as shall be satisfactory to the Corporation and the User,

(b) take or cause to be taken such other actions as may be required to implement the aforesaid
undertakings or as it may deem appropriate in pursuance thereof.

Neither the State of Texas (the “State"), the County, the Authority, nor any political subdivision or agency of
the State shall be obligated to pay any debt or other obligation of the User or the Project and that neither the faith
and credit nor the taxing power of the State, the County, the Authority, or any political subdivision or agency thereof
is pledged to any obligation relating to the Project.

Section 2. It is understood by the Corporation, and the User has represented to the Corporation,
that in consideration of the Corporation’s adoption of this Resolution, and subject to the terms and conditions hereof,
the User has agreed that

(a) the User will (1) pay all Project costs which are not or cannot be paid or reimbursed from the proceeds
of any debt and (2) indemnify and hold harmless the Carporation and the Authority against all losses, costs, damages,
expenses, and liabilities of whatsoever nature (including but not limited to reasonable attomeys’ fees, liigation and
court costs, amounts paid in settlement, and amounts paid to discharge judgments) directly or indirectly resuiting from,
arising out of or related to the Project, or the design, construction, equipping, installation, operation, use, occupancy,
maintenance, or ownership of the Project (other than claims arising from the gross negligence or willful misconduct
of the Corporation or the Authority); and

Section 3. This Resolution shall be deemed to constitute the acceptance of the User’s proposal that
it be further induced to proceed with providing the Project. Neither the User nor any other party is entitled to
rely on this Resolution as acommitment to enter into the proposed transaction, and the Corporation reserves
the right not to enter into the proposed transaction either with or without cause and with or without notice,
and in such event the Corporation shall not be subject to any liability or damages of any nature. Neither the
User nor any one claiming by, through or under the User, nor any investment banking firm or potential
purchaser shall have any claim against the Corporation whatsoever as a result of any decision by the
Corporation not to enter into the proposed transaction.

Section 4. The Board authorizes the negotiation and execution by the President, Vice President,
Secretary, Treasurer, or Director of Real Estate Development of the Board of a Term Sheet setting forth the details of
the Project.

Section 5. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and such recitals
are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a part of the judgment and findings of
the Board.



Travis County Facilities Corporation

Section 6. All resolutions, or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any provision of
this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions of this Resolution shall be and
remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein.

Section 7. If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any person or circumstance
shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the application of such provision to other persons

and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the Board hereby declares that this Resolution would have been
enacted without such invalid provision.

Section 8. This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the
State of Texas and the United States of America.

Section 9. This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its passage.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board hereby:

1. Approves Resolution TCFC-2022-01.

2. Authorizes the officers, including, specifically, the Executive Vice President and Director of Real Estate
Development, to execute all relevant documents, instruments, agreements, policies, and procedures and to
take all actions on behalf of TCFC contemplated by the foregoing resolutions.

CERTIFICATION

The above resolution, adopted by the Board of Directors of the Travis County Facilities Corporation at a meeting held on
the 7t day of April, 2022, is hereby certified to be a true and comrect copy of an official copy thereof on file among the official
records of such Corporation.

WITNESS my hand and seal of office this 7t day April, 2022.

By:
Patrick Howard, Executive Vice
President/Secretary




SOFI AT 6311 APARTMENTS
Inducement

CERTIFICATE FOR RESOLUTION

The undersigned officer of Travis County Facilities Corporation, a nonprofit public facility
corporation created pursuant to the laws of the State of Texas (the “Corporation”) hereby certifies
as follows:

1. In accordance with the bylaws of the Corporation, the Board of Directors of the
Corporation (the “Board”) held a meeting on April 7, 2022 (the “Meeting”) of the duly constituted
officers and members of the Board, at which a duly constituted quorum was present. Whereupon
among other business transacted at the Meeting, a written

RESOLUTION INDUCING THE SOFI AT 6311 APARTMENTS IN
PARTNERSHIP WITH MARCUS BUILDING COMPANY, TO BE
LOCATED AT 6311 S. 15T STREET, AUSTIN, TEXAS; AND
AUTHORIZING THE NEGOTIATION AND EXECUTION OF A TERM
SHEET; AND OTHER MATTERS IN CONNECTION THEREWITH

(the “Resolution™) was duly introduced for the consideration of the Board and discussed.
It was then duly moved and seconded that the Resolution be adopted; and, after due
discussion, said motion, carrying with it the adoption of the Resolution, prevailed and
carried by a majority vote of the Board.

2. A true, full, and correct copy of the Resolution adopted at the Meeting is attached
to and follows this Certificate; the Resolution has been duly recorded in the Board’s minutes of
the Meeting; each of the officers and members of the Board was duly and sufficiently notified
officially and personally, in advance, of the time, place, and purpose of the Meeting; and the
Meeting was held and conducted in accordance with the Articles of Incorporation and the
Bylaws of the Corporation.

SIGNED April 7, 2022.

Secretary

DM-#8229633.2



N,

J 21N
| :Ag pedojpasg Ayunwiwio) [euspIsey vV

=

1202 1890100 | Sex3| ‘unsny 1S sl S LLE9
‘Buialj uegin jo UONEIBUBD Mau 8y} 10} $8210yo Buisnoy sjgeploye buneai)

LLEI J€ 1d0S




s)JoUag 21WOU02T pUe 2lignd 3 gel
9|npayog j09foid adgel

S|eloueul JqeL

yoeouddy 109(oid q qel

wesa] juswdojanag Vv qel

SjuUa3uU0) jJO IJjqel



W
I XSpul/Wod UOIEZIURSIOSND e MMM/ /:d13Y
:91sqam Auedwo)

Auedwon suIpjing

SNIOUVWE

AInb3

SNIUVK ¥

snouvi /4

22U3IdXT
SUISNOH 32J0JIOAMN PUB B|CRPIOHY »
951120X3 SpIMUOIIBN
UOISIA AHUNWIWOD YUM IUSWUSIY
Ayoede) [ejpueuld .
3oualadx3 JuswdoaAag asN-paxiN - e

:wea] wawdojanaq 4nQ Jo syjduans

D4d ‘SUOZLIOH pauisianlq |edidulid 10129y ua)|
Jaaui8u3 11D HosSuo) ‘@n8oH euuy

1091124y ‘SI1EID0SSY 1§ U01jOg S3|IN ‘NBaWWeH uaie)
Ja8euely uawdo|arag aA13N23XT] ‘Gunoy siuuaq
Ja8euelp 100load an1lNIaxX] ‘eljeds paeydiy

19010 |eldueUl] J31YD ‘ZNYIS eleqleq

uoljeziuediQ snaie syl /OID ‘SnaeA pjouly
a8ieyd-ul-|jedpulid ‘snaJep ueyieuor

[9uUOSIad AaY

|ediduld /snaJe|n ueyleuor

sjedpulid pue s190130 AINb3 snoJey

‘'spooyJoqysdIsu a|geuleisns

pue ‘a|geAl| ‘[euoiiduny Sujping Uo PasnI0} ‘WUlj P1USII0-1UsWdO|3A3P AHUNWWOD B 348 9N »
"BpIJO|4 PUB JJOA MIN ‘Sexa] uf sjuswilede

Ajlweg-13nW 00/ 7 41970 3|ing pue pado|aaap sey Alnb3g snosey ‘Ajjeuonippy .
'SJB||Op UOI||Iq SUO UeyY)} SJjow Je panjeA s1os(oid |IeaJ pue ‘|euoiiniiisul ‘jeliisnpul ‘|eiasswulod

0 189} 24eNnbS UOJ||IW GE JDAO PRUMO JO/pUk PBCO[BASP ‘PR1ONIISUOD SBY SNJIB|A '918p O
‘Buipjing snaJeAl pue ‘salinb3 snouen

‘uoneziuedig snadelp oyl sasdwod Yorym Ajjweq snadejn ayi Jo ued Asy e st Aunb3g snosely .
"3PIMUOIIBU DAI1DB PUEB 3IOA MBN Ul paianenbpeay

Wiy Sul30B13U0D [RJBUSS pUB JUBWSTRURW UOIIINIISUOD 3D|AISS-||N B SI (SNoJe|A) AlnbI sNoJeN e

‘uoIldNJIsuod pue juawabeuew

eI3U0d ‘ubisap ul ddudliadxa Yim sieak g9 1910 104 SSDUISN( Ul U3 sey sndien

wea] Juawdojanag




3oUsadxg JUsWdo@Aaq osN-PaxIN PUE A[ILUES-3NIA

Jwio> uoneziuediosnaiewrmmm//:dny
:911sgam Auedwod

(syuswdo|anag asn-paxiiAl 21eAlId /21 |gNnd) uow|ag pue a3pliquie)
(9107 "8ny) XL ‘opaJeT - syun 0/ 7 — siuswiiedy essajuo) e

(rTOZ AInr) XL ‘@1A) - sHun 09T — sauawnedy puens ayj

(#TOZ aunf) X1 ‘ssed 9|8e7 - syun 95T — siuswnedy ssed d|3e3 [940(Q
(ZTOZ 'AON) XL ‘U33]|1) - SHUN QO — SudwHedy Uasj|ly |a1oq

(600z 1das) X1 ‘opale] - spun pzy — siuawnedy [a40Q

+ 4+ + + + +

opnpou[ s109101d 9|qeIoN

./ U0I30NJ35U02 JoHUOW 0}
|0J1U0D 81IS-UO SNOJOJ|J UBIUIBW SM Uy ‘pawiiojiad ag 01 3Iom 3y} Jo Juipuelisiapun
YSnoJoyl B 9ARY SI010BJIUOD JBYl 3INSUD M pue ‘Adeundde 1500 pue ssauaAiIadwod
10} Spig ,s1010B13U0D zAjeUE 3N "de|d Ul SI |1B19P BAISUSYaIdwod Bins a)ew o3 sueld
[e4N1D31IYDJE DUIWeXa A||NJaJed 3N “BulNPayas uoIIONJIISUOD pue SwalsAs jusuodwod
guip|ing ‘uolielio8au pue Sulppig 19e43U0D JO $311IX3|dW 0 By} SE |[9M SB JUBLIUOIIAUD
UO0[12NJISUOD BY3 pue SJIPUI JILUOUOID |B20] ‘UBISIp SuIp|IiNg JO 92U3IDS pue 1ie 3yl ul
a8pajmous| Supiom e yum Aiisnpul ayl ul AJoisiy |njssedons e sey weal Jno 4o Jaquuswl
yoe3 ‘siuawaiinbal Bulnpayas pue ‘saaidalqo ssaulsng ‘s|eod 193pNng s,1Usld B MalAa)
Jje1s Aay pue sjedpud s wuaty 3y ‘uoidadul 10afoud 1y, ‘sulejdxa snaleN pjouly 03D SY
"UOI10B)SI1ES JaWOo3snd 03 yoeosdde uo-spuey e st Aydosojiyd a1esodiod s Alnb3 snoJe

"suolleJauad aininy Joj 3day [|]am 24k sailuadoud aunsus
01 1uswadeuew Auadoid [9A9] doy ulpjujew 01 S9AMIS Auedwod a3yl "UOIDNIISUOD
Jo uona|dwod uodn dois jou saop dlom sAunb3 snolepy jeyl slou 01 juenodull
S| 3| 'SunoeJIU0D pUE JUSWISEUBW UOIINIISUOD ‘UBISap Ul 3dusliadxs sey pue sieah
09 J2A0 10} SS3UISNG Ul U33Q SeY SNJBA "9181S JBIS Uo7 8yl ul suun Ajjweyinw 00zt
JOAO ‘BUNNDNIISUOD ‘SeXa| JO 31BIS 3UI Ul paIsaAul Ajlaeay os|e S| Alinb3 snaJen "eplio|d
Se 4INos Jej Se pue Yel) Se 1S9M Jej SE SJUSI|2 123|9S O} SIIAISS FuI10eIU0D |elsudd
pue 1UsWaSeURW UOIIONIISUOD ‘pling/udisap Soplroid pue 1jJeWw  S}IBSNYIeSSe|A
9yl PaAJIaS OS|e Sey SnaJe|Al SIeSA QT UBYl SJOW 104 “OA M3N Ul palsiienbpesy wlly
8uioe)1u0D |eJaUd8 pue JusawaSeuew UOIIINIISUOD 3DIAISS-||N) B SI du| ‘Alinb3 snaselp

Ayinbg snaae



o |
(]
|

L

=4

3oUBBdX3] JUsWdo@Aa( osN-PaxIAl PUE AJWES-NIA

JU102°U01|0qgSa|IU' MMM/ /1say
r91sgam Auedwo)

BPIIO|H ‘DIABQ ‘||BH OYelA ALISISAIUN UI81SEBYINOS BACN
BPIJO|4 ‘3||IAUOSYOE[ ‘S9oUBpISaY uegln Jueqyinos

epl4oj4 ‘edwe] ‘AdusH syl

(lemeH ‘N|N|OUOH ‘BUBOIA B|Y ‘SNJJB|A UBLUISN

2131090 ‘BIUB|IY ‘BPISISAIY 150d

puejAie|n ‘AJuno) Asowio3iuolA ‘Bulssol) s,081U]

181035 ‘YeuueAes ‘Buipuer JaAlY YeuueAes

elUJO}I|BD) ‘3sof ues ‘@3e||IA sndwed AsisAlun 91e1S 9sof ues
3quasaQ -e134099 ‘AJunod qgoD ‘UIrIUNOIA SBUIUIA BUQ

+ 4+ + 4+ + + + + +

opnJou| s109101d 9|qeION

‘JWelAl pue weydnq/ysis|ey ‘uoisnoH ‘ninjoucH
‘elue|ly ‘s9|28uy o7 Suipnioul S N Y3 SSOJDE SBIIID Ul S3I11|10B) JISURL] PaUBISaQ
"€00¢ Ul ‘{puejAey ‘s3ulids
J3AJIS) sumoy Jietg ‘Axunwiwod Juswilede Ajlwes-inw 4337 1S41 S,U0leU 3y} PaUBISAQ .
"(JeasABaaul ‘Liyids
‘“yesoyued ‘q337) aoeds Ajjwepnw 40 1934 a4enbs a|geuirISNS UOI|[IW G paudisa(q .
pausisap pue AJo1sly 4eaA-0f SH Sulnp syun Sulj|emp 000’05/ UYL 2J0W paudisa(q »

‘

:apn|aul sjuawysiidwodde s ygN
‘Aluap! Alunwwod—3uialasald Jo—3uj1eald 1e pawie ||e ‘Speol pue s|ied ‘SIdIAIBS Ad)
pue sadeds 2yiqnd jo Aejdiajul pue 1noAe| syl ‘A1 pue pooydoqysdiau e uiyim uooun}
suIp|INg Moy 404 JJomawiely [enixa3uod e saplaoid yoeoldde ygN Yyl ‘TUSWBA3IYde 01Ul
|enauazod saje|suedy 1eyy ueld e dojsasp 01 ssedoud AloienSal syl ysnodyy 9sinod ayl
sjo|d pue sisAjeue Suip|ing pue 21is SayeLBPUN U0}|0g SI|IN ‘UOII1ONJISUOD JO Salljeal 3yl
pue saA113[go Jual|D ‘@de|diayJew Sy3 JO SPI3U Syl UOIIBISPISUOD 01Ul JUiyel "eIUIBIIA
‘elIpuBXa|y Ul S321}J0 YiM e181095 ‘eluely Ul paseq sl ygN ‘GZ6T Ul papunod 's'n ayl ul
swil} a4nyoanydJde pue uluueld ‘udisap doi syl Jo 3UO SI (YEN) S21eI20SSY '3 U0}|0g S3|IN

SALVIICSSY NOL1OE SITIN 1P31yduy

Sa3)eld0ssSy uoljjoqg S9|IN



"S$10931Y2Jy
Aylaoullp 4oy uopeziuediQ
[BUOIIEN D] JO JoqUBW AI108
ue si ays ‘AjIsiaalun pJenstey
w044 24N329311Y21Y 4O JO|ayoeg
J3Y paAIDIaL Uied ‘salpnis
uegJn Ul 33U31S JO Jojdyoeg

e yum AJISIAIUN umolg

J0 91enpeJ8 v ‘sjuswalinbau
J19Y3 uo y3noayl Auied pue
$aA1103[qo JIaYy3 puelsIapun
pue Jeay o} ssauusdo

J3Y WOUS SIAIIBP SIUSID YIM
diysuone|aJ 3uipuels-suo|
S,U34BD) "S1|NSaJ 9ABIYde pue
SDUI|pE3P 199W 03 3Unssaud
J2PUN [|9M SHIOM pUB |B3Z YIIM
swa|qoJid sappoey ays ‘3uisea|d
Ajleanayisae pue jeuolouny
aJe 1ey3 s1daouod udissp

OJu| Pa3u 1U3)[2 Sufie|suedy
sieaA 7z 1uads sey uaJse)

S9IBID0SSY
uo}|og S9|IN /U0I1NJISUOD
R UBIsa( /10211ydly

11ININVYH

N34vO

‘uojeJISIUIWpPE 1S pue
uonejuswa|dw| pue ugisap
103(04d ‘sisAjeue 8ui1sod
‘JuswdojaAsp a1s 3ulpnjoul
sall|igisuodsad JO 93ues apim
e sassedwooua aouaiadxa siH
"s21310edRD SNOLIBA Ul PRYJIOM
sey pue TTOZ ut Aynb3
snaJe|\ paujof sH "epliojd

pue ‘sexa] ‘s118snyaesse(n
y1oq uj Juswdojanap
Apiadoud ul panjoaul

uaaq sey aH Juawdo|arap
212159 |[Ba4 pPUE UOIIdNJISUOD
Ul 92U314adXa 4O Sieah

GE ueyl 310W Sey SUNOA "IN

Aynb3 snoJe|p
Ja8euen
1UawdoaA3(] IAIINISXT

ONNOA

SINN3Q

‘Bplol4

ur Aemuapun s3aafoad 1uaaind
UM BIUISJIA pue ‘Yein
‘sexa] ‘UNOSSIA DJ0A MaN
‘A3SJ[ MIN ‘S19sSNDessen
Suipnpoul ‘sa1es uj sysfoud
pa13|dwod A|(N}ssa20Ns

sey snaJeip Juawdo|@aaq
|BIJUSP|SIY pue ‘BIAIBS
po04 ‘|ea1nadewleyd 93140
‘|eaIpaN ‘eldIsnpu] Buipnjaul
199} a1enbs 000°000°0€

J0 $$90x3 Ul s1e3A Of 15ed 3y}
13A0 512304d U0I3INIISUOD
[BI2J3WW02 pala|dulod sey
‘uoineziuediQ snaJen ayl Jo
03D pUB JU3PISAU ‘SNDUBIN
plouJy -uoneziuesiQ snaJen
dY1/03D - snaJpi pjouty

uoleziuesiQ snaJen 3yl
‘01D

SNIJYVIA

aTONYV

A4OA

maN a8edyiag ‘sisnenbpesH
s,Ada3|s :se yons

s103fold sapnoul dousliadxa
S,e11edS “I|A MJOA MIAN
UAJ}00.g Ul 91N13SU| 11Rdd Y}
W0J4 34N12931Y2.Y JO Jojaydeg
e Suial@oad 01 Joud ‘Asisnpul
JUSWaBeUBLWI UOI3INJISUOD

ul Suiydom aauanadxa

10 SJe3A Q€ J19A0 SUteUleW
eljeas "IN */00¢ d2uls Bulp|ing
snaJej yum Jadeuew 3oafoud
UOI12NJISUOD B UI3Q Sey eljeds
pJeydry -4a8eue|A 323[0.d
9AIINI3XT - B1|RDS pJeydly

Auedwo) 3uip|ing snaJep
‘1a3euep 103old

VITvdS
QyvHIIY

‘Aouednaoo

%06 aA0ge S{2A9) e dn
-3Se3| ||N4 03 USWIDUSWWO0D
UCRONJISUOD

ay3 wody s303[o4d Buideurw
pue 3ulnpayss yim

8uo|e ‘s30eJIUOD UCIFINIISUOD
40 s1n0ANg ‘syuswdolanap
91e159 |eaJ Suizl|enidasuod
/3uiuue|d ‘syosfoud
U0I1oNJ1sU02 3uileWiISa
/8UippIqg ‘UoiPNIISUOD
911s-uo 3uisiazadns ‘03 pajiwi)
10U Ing 3UIpN|DUl SNJJIBIA
ulyum sajoeded snojJea uj
PBAJDS SBeY SndJe|p ueyieuor

‘7661 22UIS -I3qWIBIN
BuiBeue|n - snauep ueyleuor

Aunb3 snosep
‘19quwia SuiBeueln

SNOUVIN
NVHIVNOf

sioquidy wea ) Asy



pue

056-018 v pag-T /32140

OvET-L20T [4) pad-¢
1€8-609 16T pag-1
LBV T8 Aduaio1443

1S [e10) UnN adAl 1un

:sadA | 1un jenuapisay

S91103S §

RIVE[ETT]

YJed Jeaul yemapis pue pieA1no) doyjooy
:saoeds uadp

4S26v'T

:9oedg [eDIBWIWO)

85¢

sHun jo 4 jejol

S321JJ0 Ssaulsng
SAIBIISIUIWPY  /|BIIUSPISIY  Ajllue4-3 NN

:s9sM pasodo.d

soloe -/+ Q'€

:92I§ [9248d

SP/8L X1 ‘unsny 1S T STTEY

:uone’on]

ue|d JuswidojaAs(q

*SaljIWIDS puD S|PNPIAIPUI dWOIUI-31DIIPOW S,DIID
ay3 o1 ajqpp.ioffo aip syun uawindp DU TTEI 1D [H0S

'$$920k Jaudalul pasds-ysiy
yum paddinba aq |im Aujioe) [0S 2413US Sy} 'S3ll|1o.) SuIOM 310WalJ SB ||9M Se ‘UDIE|IIUBA
pue ssauljuea|d ‘seate uado Joj saunioddo Buiziseydwa Ag BulAlj QIAQD 1sod Joj |apowl
e ysijgeisa o0} sadoy 323foid ayy ‘Ajzse] ‘Aljiqeuleisns [BJUSWILOIIAUS UO Pasndo) suielgoud
pue SaAllellul u2aJd apnpoul |Im 303foxd Byjp ‘ApuUNWWOD SIyl 01 aNjeA Sppe pue UOI1edO|
juauiwold 3sJ14 Yynos uo sazijeyded jeyy 109(odd juswdolsnspal asn-paxiul Ajlwe)-iynw
‘UegJn Ue S| 1| "BaJE SIY} JOJ 109f04d 213A|RIRD B SE JUSWUOUIAUS JUBIQIA B $31e3JD TTE9 18 [{0S

'SaljlWe) pue ‘s|euoissajold [9Ad]-Allua ‘ssejd-3upyiom 03 Suliaied
s1 199f01d 3yl 192415 1T S Suole AJAIIOBUUOD 1SUBLY SZIAIJUSDUI PUE JUBLIUCIIAUS 3|gBY|eM
e aj0wold 01 98pa 3|emapis 2yl 01 3jIng 29 ||IM JuswdojaAsp ay| Jooj punoid 3yl 18 210
SS3UISNg pue 3AlelIsiujwpe ‘sadAl Woolpag-om1 pue auo 0} olpnis/Adusioiye woly Sulhien
SHUN [BIUBPISAS G apN[aUl ||Im 10afoud By "sexal ‘ullsny 40 A 1eau8 Byl Ul 199415 T S
TTE9 1e pa1edo] JuawdojaAap Ajlue}NW sN-paxiw HUN-8SZ B ‘L LE9 3e 140 01 SWOod o

uonduasaq 1vaload

yoreoaddy 3o9load




(urw pT)
Hoday
|euoneusalu|

wol1sdiag-unsny __

440110

IAISYIAN 1SYT @

NILSNV LSV3

SONIYdS 44N14

{uw ot)
3Jed 1UISIA
s3uuids snoQ

8li5-uQ

(CIUR:);
ANSIBAIUN
upsny

(Ui G-€)
989(10D
Aunwwo)

(uw ot)
unsny
[l UMOIUMOQ

NILSNV TVHLINID

auop

sjuawWaA0Idwl 84N10NISRIIUI (9IS ApeaJ-]anoys +
pale ayl uj Juswisanul aljgnd pue a1ealid +
1348w Sujwoog upsny +

:3uawdojanag ppv-an|eA

sndwe) usny yinos
1989||10D ALUNWWOD UIISNY pue ALISISAILN
unsny supnpul |40S Wodj snipe.

JIW 7 UIYIM Pa1eI0| S3111|108B) [RUOIIEINPD +/ +
Sed 313s1Q s8ulds aro@ Sulpnjaul *I40S
WOoJJ SNIped 3[IW 7 e ulylim paledo| syied + €T +

|eqdsoH uolle|igeysy
[BDIP3IA J2UUOgaN|g pue [eUdSOH SYeQ
ulIsny uolgulang 3ulpnauj ‘[40OS WoJd) snipel

3|IW Z B UIYIM pa31ed0| S|ledsoy Jolew ¢ +
[4OS WoJ}

SNIped 3[IW % & UlY}Im pPa1edo| S|jooyds + ST +
voddy

[EUOI1RUJD1U| WOouIsBuag-ullsny 01 SaInuUIW T +

uIsNy UMoumoq 03 sa3nuiw QT +
guimoud

pue 1axew uoiendod (6T0T) L08'0S6 +

:uoI8aJ ay3 ul sJ91ua0 uswAo|dwis Jofew 03 §S920Y

*SJUIPISaJ 34nIN} 104 JUdWUOIIAUD Aejd pue
‘4dom ‘aAl1| e aplnoid [|Im 1Byl uoileao] anbiun e si 3

"$39|21YaA [euostad uo
2oueljaJ 2yl 8upnpad Ag Ajjigeulelsns pue Ajjigeploe
sapoddwy  slyl  unsny  Jo o AlD syl inoysnouyl
puE UMOIUMOQ 03} Msuetl oygnd SuLB)O  ‘9IIAISS
sng 0J13|Al 01 §S920B 102JIp Joj Buimo|le ‘@us uo dois
SN B s3dniesy 40S 1S T 'S Suoje paledo| Ajleoise1ens

uoijes0- joafoid



J sasey e o»'\w

uvgpo1 o) ZP e 1d ] v e

@ ﬂ#uiiu..r.w.,.hum.l\

® N/

ALY WY T

I
;

o= 0=

/ @ en3is
/
Wreost

il
]

o |

w5vd i G-
hex -_mb!!- i Bwv _ |
o 7 Cungtabe VT Jmn mmemcmmm (U)) d )8

\eoe? _ _

~® e

1 TIANVHO HTERD
f r-q-s_—:.-d-a.:.

.ﬁ|”.

UMY A1) USNy Ag jeaoader o uianjoses uanb pue
paeey oup2pg 103 £q po.aipr und Wasks solensn)p dey

0Z0Z/GL/L
e ) COOMIOHYL () wwauaw )

o ®

L ARES mx!:.ﬂ_...l‘ —smmy L@
Ny B
P ! g =2

- __m & ___H =9

] -.E_u..i:._.- e uﬂ.ﬂ:\-w\i-n“.

o

.m Y ANI0I polai
E:Bomhno m ...
m i o
: ]
z m ey ety
&, :
o ‘ssy @ = LR A
@o«-ﬂ.%ﬁxe .swsu W.---n:-..@. Lrer "0 e (a)
o i | saaua nasns({) g, &
ﬁ..?a}.x e kS ....:.h.@. B B
oY .__..L.,_..I..‘.avs._........m-,-.......-.e
olH a@ @ wemd) A .”
wui's — -

A e ra.
i ©)

3 VMV IS0 )
0 TN N O

wartusp janisyomseg HILREEL
sray pivgaiey pauey) S
ea1pen (RDDDEL

®dvmouLIn

N e LT}

iy mriuss) I
Rl B EULly —
TveouiIn

SINAUIS TIGVIEAY 1TNOLIOTY

awron
sslepaspenny oo vy EEE—

Dt esen1ins v e s vamsugensy mend (81141

PR sutaai) ERARN

Loy pRY L Th o]
Mantaigpouny — G d—

ymeatin UN3931

... @
umoabican o) \W—

0202 ‘01 dunr paidopy

NV1d WILSAS
303UU09108/0/d §) | O¥LIW ¥ .

sov TviNT @
25VaNONI @

"BUIEyI01 A4S 3. S3D1Id BWOY BIaYM IDNIEW UNISNY SY] Ul JUSPIAS
ApeinonJed si sy sswoy [eyual d|qeproge NOITTIIN Z 40 @beroys esey s'nayL

dVO ALMNIGVA4d044v
ONISNOH_

3|21YaA [euosiad Ag [anesd

$9INpPaJ 18Y] JUSWJO|9Ap PajUSIIO-1ISUBR) B 81eal)

3Al| 03 90e|d |N41INE3q pue ajes e sulewal TTE9 18 [0S
1ey3 8ulinsua quswadeuew Apiadoud |aAs| doy ulejule|n
sanjeA Ajadoud pue Awouodas |e20] adueyu3

SHUN YJ0M-3AI| Y3noaya

Aj910Wal $$BUISNQ 19NPUOD 01 AYljIge 9y3 SIUapISal UalJO
3uisea|d Ajjeanayisae

s11ey1109foad e 3unessd Ag apud Alunwiwiod 1s00g
Juawdolansp

3sn-paxiw y3noJdyl Alljigeureisns pue yimols qol syowold
uisNy Yyanos ui Juswdo|saspal

9AIISOd 331el|108) J9Yy1Ny 01 3SA|e1ed e se aAJaS

unsny ur ded AyljigepJlojje 3uimold ayy aspliq djsH

sjeon) ® saAl}oalqo joafoad



AllUSWY puUe SUUMN [elluUapISaY SHUM [eRUSpISaY
Ueld J0O|4 yp Ueld J00|4 G

ALINIWY Q¥YALEINOD ALIN3 Eﬁhuﬁxxﬂwﬂﬁ (S
SLNIN LYY

1S1STS
1S1STS
SHUM |elIUaPISAY AYlUBWY puUB SHUN JJOAN /3AIT
Ue|d 00|4 p,€- pul Ue|d 1004 PuUNoJS
ALINWY GHVALYNOD A
SINIWLHYAY

SLINN HHOMSIAN

| T i
| T |

i

_ _ _ - T

IS1sTs
_

1SISTS sue|d JOO|{ pue SUOI1eA3|]

ubisaq



199435 35T S Buojy
U01193S SsoJ4D) 3uip|ing

& [
[LRELERE
z 5
=2 b 3
A — —N
VIFATT Y = =
-..u 1IN L6 LInN LINMI NN 1INN M
= &
FAETECA A = i
...-.” LINN LN QY ALHNCD LN L1INN advALdIN 00 1NN LN o
4 = 5
GRELEIRG = —r
m LINND LiWr nn LINN ._.u
A &
PEATY LINN LINOY LINN M
=l
13
193415 55T S Suoly
UOI1eA3|3 1UOJS
I =Sy B N ™7 il P | i 1 00 N |
| _ﬁ ola ] = 5 . .
. - - . : — _
. ! _ _ —J L L |_ _.I_ Lt ’
_. iS5 | Hlss ||_ { _ I _
_ H _ i _
_ _ | _ |
_ -y = i - e
1l ) 5 1) ] | i 21 Sl 41 5 1 [ LS ] 1 A U

Sue|d 400|{ pue SUOIlBAl|]

ubisaq




pJeAlno) [eJiua) ¢

NO3PAYS T

‘Buimas

UuegJn ue ul UoI1eaJd3J JOOPINO pue Jle Ysadj Jo}
saliunlioddo sjuapisal 3uldalo ‘spaeAlunod ¢
S94Nn1ea} [HOS ‘PullW Ul SSaujjam pue

Uyeay yum pausissp sem TTEI 3e 140S

.._%_..q__"_n

sanuawy




yied 3o@

punoagAe|d s,uaJp|iyd

winnoeA Jed [eiJawwo)

sa|qel1 2iudid pue s||lI9

wooy Allunwwo)

J91U3) ssaull4

|00d SUIWIWIMS

Hxa/Anus pailes yum 3uidusj Jsrswliad

:saljluawy AJlunwwio)

S19S0|D UI-Y|BAN o
ssluodjeq/solied paisno) .
soouel|dde [9331s SSa|ulelS .
SWoo0Jpaq ui suej ul|Ie) e
Suuoo|j soepns pieH .
J9AIp pue Jaysem Hun-u| .
sdouajuno) ajluelo .
S3Ul|192 100}-6
SOIusWY Hun

:apNn|oul TTEY 1€ (40§ 1. SAUUAWY [BUOINIPPY

(2) senuswy



618°CS 9 G8E'T (Jwog®)(€-19) Wooipag om|

GET'ES Z G8E'T (€9) wooupag om|

vves z 68T (7g) wooupag om||

7e9Ts z 9€T'T (T9) wooipag om|

€9T°€$-6£0°€S S 8€0'T-0TO'T HI0M 2N

T98TS € GSL (4Wog®) (SV'8YY) pog duQ

SZT'CS % GS/ (SY'8YY) pag auQ

[0L°TS 1€ ov9 (ywog®@) (€v3TY) pag auo

S06'TS 14 0t9 (€vBev) pag auo

veT'TS 4 996 (3WoS®) (T Ye Tv) peg BuQ

VLTS 1 999 (e Tv) peg du0

7565 a 89S (JwosS®) (TV) peg suQ

07s'TS 8¢ 895 (4ywog®) (TV) pag auo

IHN 9608 © S3UN JO %TY LYLTS 3 399 (Tv) peg auo
4Nl %09 @ S3UN JO %S LEVTS 1% 18 (W08 ®) AousDIHI
4N %0S ®@ SHUN JO %9 Z99'TS Ve Z15 Aduapig

:uduodwo) Ayljigepioyy Y S}UM JO JaquInp (45) 2zis Mun

Ajyauolp pasodoud

ISMO|[0} Se 248 TTE9 18 [40S 404 s3uaJ pasodoud sy

G7G'€98°0%S 99 01 pa1ewilse S| 31502 103(04d (2101 3YL

uonduasaq 13load

s|eisueul




S3LVIDOSSY NOL10E STTIN

L0}-GV

12/20/%0 | NOILVZINVDHO SNOUYW

W0- = .9L/€ [Laisev

45 0 *ANODVd
4S¥16 :Q3Lv3IH

SINIWLEVAY LSHI4 HLNOS

3 1INN

02¢

3 LINN -NVd NOLLYINISIdd LINN{ | )




SALVIDOSSY NOL1TOd SATIN 12/20/%0 | NOILVZINYDYO SNDYYW

wl-qv W0-1 = .90/E [ToL-sv
LY LINN -NV1d NOILVAN3SI¥d LINN| | )

WL

45 0 *:ANODTvd
45 896 :Q3Lv3IH

SINIWLYVAY 1Sd1d HLNOS

LV LINN




SALVIDOSSY NOL1Od S3TIN 12/70/%0 | NOILYZINYDYO SNDYVYW

£0L-qv 0.1 =.9L/€ (fo1-sv
(ANODTVE) | LIV-IV LINN -NY'1d NOLLV.IN3SRd LINN [ 1+ )

028

1 NaHoLt

i

J0-8

45 €9 *:ANOD1vE
45 89S :g31viH

WLl
SINIWLYYAY LSHI4 HLNOS

(ANODVE) | 1Iv-LV LINN




SALVIDOSSY NOL1Od S3TIN

¥0L-9v

12/20/%0 | NOILVZINYDYHO SNOYVYW

W0-1 =.9L/¢ [voi-sv

ONId3TTS

N3HILM

i

WbbeLL
45 0 “ANODTve

45996 :@31v3IH

SINIWLHYAY 1SYI4 HLNOS

¢ 1TV-1V LINN

028

61 LINN -NVTd NOLLVLIN3S3Yd LINN | |




SALVIDOSSY NOLTO9 SN 12/20/%0 | NOILVZINYDYO SNOYVYW

SUER 0~} =.91/€ (sot-sv
ZV 1INN -Nv1d NOILVIN3S3gd LNN [ 1 )

4S 0Z :ANOD1Vd
45 029 :d3LviIH

SLINIWLEVAY LSHI4 HLNOS

¢V 1INN




SALVIDOSSY NOL104d S3TIN 1Z/20/%0 | NOILYZINYDYO SNDYVYW

901-5v 0-1 =94/ (015v
€V LINN -NV1d NOILVIN3S3gd LINn | + )

RIIEEERN

W£0-Z€

—4
==

NIHJLIM

=r ONIAIT

0-0Z
45 0 :ANODTvVd
4S 0¥9 :Q3Lv3IH

SINIWLHVAY LSHI4 HLNOS

€V LINN




SALVIDOSSY NOLTO8 STTIN

LO}-GY

| NOILVZINYDYO SNDOYVW

W00 =.91/€ [Loi-sv

45 85 :ANODve
45 60/ *Q3LV3H

SINIWLYVAY LSHI4 HINOS

PV LINN

Wooua3a S

0L

08

0m2€

Sl oL

¥V LINN -NVd NOILYINIS3dd LINN [ 1 |




SALVIDOSSY NOLTOd SATIN 12/20/%0 | NOILYZINYDYO SNDYYW

801-GV
W01 =.91/¢ (s01-sv
GV LINMN -NVid NOILVLN3SIdd LINN| 1 |

WS/ 0T

WS0-Z€

ANODTVE

45 79 *:ANODTvd
4 €€8 :Q3LvaiH

SINIWLHVAY 1SY14 HLNOS

GV 1INN




SALVIDOSSY NOL10d STTIN

601-9v

12/20/%0 | NOILVZINYDHO SNOYYW

0- )0 =.9L/€ [e01-cv)

4S L :ANODTVE
45 9¢L1 *d3LvaH

SINIWLHVAY 1SY14 HLNOS

19 LINN

_”_OO
-l

(I
1ve "W

19 LINN -NY1d NOILYIN3STdd LINN( 1 )

028




SALVIDOSSV NOL1048 SITIN

olLl-sv

12/20/%0 | NOILYZINVOYO SNOUYW

W00 =.9L/€ [oli-8v

4S 69 :ANODIvVE
4S 1S€} *Q3.LVaIH

79 LINN -NV1d NOILVLIN3STdud LINn | | )

woouaiga 'w

Wb-LE

ONIAIT

ANODTVE

SINIWLYVAY LSHId HLNOS

<9 1INN




S3ALVIOOSSVY NOL108 S3TIN

13514

12/70/%0 | NOILVZINVDHO SNOYYW

W0- 0= .9L/¢ [1iey

W02

45 8/ *:ANODTvd
4S €6€1 *Q31v3IH

SINIWLMVAY 1S¥I4 HLNOS

€4 LINN

€9 LINN -NV1d NOILYIN3STHd LINO{ |

ANODTVE




SIALVIDOSSY NOLTOE SATIN 12/20/%0 | NOILVZINVOYO SNOYVYW

=Sy 0-1 = .9L/E (T
T LINA NV d NOILVAINGS38d LNN | 1 )

{062

ERL MR VAEL]

4S 0 *ANODvd
45 6£0) *Q3LVY3H

SINIWLIHVAY LSHId HLNOS

M1 1INN




120¢/1/8

120¢/1/8

920¢/1/8

Gcoce/L/9

SC0e/1/L
SC0T/T/v
q20t/8t/t
t20t/0¢/8
v20t/8¢/t
€coz/og/ot
€e0e/et/t
¢eoe/8e/3
¢c0c/0g/s
ceoe/og/y
¢eoe/og/9
eoT/T/T
ceoe/t/e
1202/1/v
1202/0¢/T
120¢/st/v

970Z/1/8
Seoe/T/s
Sz0e/1/a
S20e¢/1/s
ST0T/T/1
v20z/1/01
vzoz/1/¢
€202/0€/1T
€20¢/82/t
ceoz/1/6
2eoz/1/9
ceoe/t/s
eoe/1/c
ceoe/1/t
120¢/1/T1
120¢/1/¢
1202/1/¢
0zoz/st/ca
120z/0€/T

uoljezijiqels o1 Juay
dn asea

$,00

1S1|]-ydund

unayJe|n aus JO/2Ms uQ
jood /-8pig 2140 Suises]
INO ysluly

dIN

duiweu

wnipod

1984e] - 14E1S U0I1dNIISU0)
ddMS /3MS uo azl|IqoN
919J2U0) - 1noAng 103(oud
1noAng 103loid

Suipun4 — 3uidueul yueg
Sumiwuad

sue|d gqg |ein1aa3ydly

}9S d11ewayds/aaq A
uoloesuedj Aladoud

2¢0Z-Ya1eN
SUO03S3|I 15414 Yinos

anpayss joafoid




S1UBPISa) MBU JO XN|JUI YHM S35S3UISN( [eI0] oddnS »

e9.e 3] 01 SJUBPIS3I MAU JO UoI1ea.d qof pue Joedul| JJWOU0dT

soiydes3owap a240pHom 3ul}adie] e

(dois snq) Anj1oey 3suedy panosduw| e

SHUN YO /3AIT o

001G SUISNOH SUIAJISIBAIQ

JusWdo|aAQ PAIUBIIQO HSURI]

3U[SNOH 9|CePJOLY

:3pnou| syyauag Ajlunwiwo) jeuoiippy

*9|qeuleisns pue a|gqeAl| Juelqia

aJe jeyl saniunwwod Suneasd ul jjasu sapld Alinb3 snaiepy
"AMIAI}OBUUOD |BAN}ND pue ‘QUBWISAAUl dleAd  ‘saljiudwe
u__n_SQ \whzuusbmmhm:_ uda48 JoJ salisap s, Ajunwwod ayl sullesw
pue unsny |eJiud) yinos ul aoeid Supeyr Ajpustind juswdolaAspal

aAlIsod ay3 1uawadwod 0} ‘UOZIIOH PaINISIBAIQ 1| sdnoJd apissuole
updom ‘uojzuaiul Jno sty AjuUNWWOD 3yl JO J3jdoejeyd pue 1X31u0d

"ONI SNOZI¥OH @3141S¥3A10 94} YUM JU31SISU0D SI TTE9 1B {405 JO 1uswdoeAsp 3y} 1eyl ainsud
01 S|el91eW punoJdydeq Jayjo pue sapeleyd ‘suejd aAlsusyaidwod
—..—Q; ‘S]UBWINJ0P SUIUOISIA AHUNWWOD SNOLIBA pamalnad sey Alnb3 snolelp

IN3NdOT3IAIA IHL WOXH
1INS3Y T1IM LVHL S1143N39 21789Nnd ANV JINONOD3

sjijouag siwouodsy 9 dljqnd




Alnb3 snaisep
:Ag padojena@ Allunwiwo) |enuspisay v

V380

NOA juey |

1202 1990100 | sexal ‘uisny 1S sl S L1E9
‘BuIAl] UBQJN JO UOREIBUSD Mau ay} Jo} $9210yd Buisnoy ajgepioye Buiess)

LLED € 1dOS




Travis County Facilities Corporation

TCFC Regular Agenda V.A.
April 7, 2022

Subject: Real Estate Development

Background Information: The Housing Authority of Travis County formed the Travis County Facilities Corporation
(TCFC) to serve as a financing tool for development opportunities that were not of a financial structure compatible with the
Strategic Housing Finance Corporation or an ownership structure compatible with the requirements of the Housing
Authority of Travis County.

Update Summary:

TECH RIDGE APARTMENT HOMES

Currently the TCFC is participating in a Public-Private development partnership with Embrey Development to build a new
multifamily community known as Tech Ridge Apartment Homes. The purpose of the TCFC'’s involvement in the
development is to provide Workforce Housing by utilizing a Public Facilities Corporation (PFC) structure and the property
tax exemption afforded it by law. A summary of the property is provided below.

Developer: Embrey Development

Location: IH-35 & Tech Ridge Blvd., Austin, TX

Total Number of Units: 311

Affordability Breakdown: 155 units at 80% of median income adjusted for family size
156 units at market rate

Unit Mix Breakdown: 201 - 1br, 91 - 2br, 16 - 3br

Development Status: Under Construction

Completion Percentage: 67% as of 2/28/22 (Draw 17)

Anticipated Completion: May 2023

Potential Partnerships:

SOUTH FIRST APARTMENTS

A Memorandum of Understanding with The Marcus Group is being presented for consideration and possible approval by
the TCFC Board on 4/7/22. Below is the current information on the proposed development.

Developer: The Marcus Organization

Location: South First & Eberhart Lane, Austin, TX

Total Number of Units: 258

Affordability Breakdown: 132 @ 80% AMFI/ 126 @ Market

Unit Mix Breakdown: 51 efficiencies, 191 1-BR, 12 2-BR, 4 Office/1-BR

Income Breakdown: 5% at 50% Area Median Family Income (AMFI)
5% at 60% AMFI
41% at 80% AMFI
Development Status: Recommendation to approve the Memorandum of Understanding being presented to TCFC

Board on 4/7/22.



g P
e
S

TCFC

Travis County Facilities Corporation

LAMAR AT KOENIG

Staff was presented with an opportunity to consider a Workforce Housing development in Central Austin using the Public
Facilities Corp (51% at 80% AMFI) structure. Cambrian Development (Bercy Chen Studio L.P.) acquired approximately
2.5 acres of land in July 2020 which is located at 900 Old Koenig/5916 N Lamar. A total of 163 units will be affordable at
80% of AMI. These units will also have rents set at least $200 under market rent.

Developer: Bercy Chen Studio LP / Cambrian Development
Location: 5916 N. Lamar, Austin, TX

Total Number of Units: 325

Affordability Breakdown: 163 @ 80% of AMFI / 162 @ Market

Unit Mix Breakdown: 103 Studios, 179 1-br, 39 2-br, 4 3-br

Income Breakdown: 51 Studios
90 1-br
20 2-br
2 3-br
Development Status: Memorandum of Understanding executed by all parties. Borrower applying for financing.

A Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) was executed by Bercy Chen as of 9/3/21. Since that time the Developer has
been in the process of applying for financing to HUD via the 221d3 program.

Recommended Action: N/A
Alternate Option:
N/A

Fiscal Impact:
N/A

Attachment:
N/A

Prepared by:
Keith Hoffpauir — Asset Manager

Approval:

Pk B. Howard

Patrick B. Howard, Executive Vice President




TCFC

Travis County Facilities Corporation

TCFC Regular Agenda V.B.
April 7, 2022

Subject: Discussion of TCFC Set-Aside Funds
Discussion of TCFC Set-Aside Funds.

Staff prepared analysis of TCFC Set-Aside Funds - anticipated sources and uses and expected funds remaining at year-
end. Also included are resolutions and designations related to the TCFC Set-Aside Funds.

Recommended Action:
For discussion/information only. No action needed.

Alternate Option:
N/A

Fiscal Impact:
N/A

Attachment:
A. TCFC Set-Aside Analysis and Resolutions

Prepared by:
Subra Narayanaiyer, CPA, Director of Finance

Approval:

Ptk B. Howard

Patrick B. Howard, CEO/Executive Director




HATC - Travis County Facilities Corporation (TCFC)
Deeply Affordable Set-Aside Funds Analysis

TCFC Set-Aside Balance 02/28/2022 S 2,077,484
SHFC CY2022 Budgeted Contribution to TCFC Set-Aside from Bond

only and new real estate transactions 140,000
Expected Distribution Embry Tech Ridge CY2022 - 50% to TCFC Set-
Aside

1,000,000 1,140,000

Estimated TCFC Set-Aside Balance 12/31/2022

3,217,484
Commitment to Manor Town Phase Il - Resolution TCFC-2020-05 (655,680)
Estimated additional request for Manor Town Phase Il (294,320)

Estimated Undesignated TCFC Set-Aside Balance 12/31/2022 $ 2,267,484



TCFC

Travis County Facilities Corporation

1.

TCFC Action Item IV.A.
November 6, 2020

Resolution No. TCFC-2020-05: To Approve a contribution of $655,680 to The Housing Authority of Travis
County, Texas for the development of Manor Town Apartments Phase 2

WHEREAS, the Housing Authority of Travis County (“HATC") is planning a development for affordable,
elderly multifamily rental housing known as Manor Town Apartments Phase 2 located at approximately 200 West
Carrie Manor Street in Manor, Texas (TDHCA #20506) (the “Development); and

WHEREAS, HATC is in need of funding to meet the equity contribution requirements of the Texas
Department of Housing and Community Affairs in order to obtain NHTF funding in the Soft-Repayment Set-Aside
for the Development

WHEREAS, Patrick Howard is Executive Vice President of TCFC and Robert Onion is the Director of
Real Estate Development of TCFC (collectively, the "Authorized Signatories” and each, an “Authorized
Signatory"); and

WHEREAS, the Board has determined that the construction and ownership of the Development is
consistent with the corporate purposes of TCFC;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF TRAVIS COUNTY
FACILITIES CORPORATION THAT TCFC contribute $655,680 to The Housing Authority of Travis County,
Texas for the Development.

FURTHER RESOLVED, that any and all action taken by an Authorized Signatory (or any other officer
of TCFC), each acting on behalf of TCFC, prior to the date of this resolution is actually executed, in effecting the
purposes of the foregoing resolutions is hereby approved, ratified and adopted in all respects.

FURTHER RESOLVED, that the officers of TCFC are each individually authorized to certify and attest
to the adoption and approval of the foregoing resolutions.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board hereby:
Approves Resolution TCFC-2020-05.

2. Authorizes the officers, including, specifically, the Executive Vice President and Director of Real Estate

Development, to execute all relevant documents, instruments, agreements, policies, and procedures and to take
all actions on behalf of TCFC contemplated by the foregoing resolutions.



TCI-C

Travis County Facilities Corporation

CERTIFICATION

The above resolution, adopted by the Board of Directors of the Travis County Facilities Corporation at a meeting
held onthe _{o_day of November, 2020, is hereby certified to be a true and comect copy of an official copy thereof
on file among the official records of such Corporation.

WITNESS my hand and seal of office this_{2_day Alpvesthes 2020,

o LAk Mol

Patrick Howard, Executive Vice PregidenUSecretary




TCFC

N

Travis Caunty Facilities Corporation

TCFC Action Item IV.A.
November 6, 2020

Resolution No. TCFC-2020-05: To Approve a contribution of $655,680 to The Housing Authority of Travis
County, Texas for the development of Manor Town Apartments Phase 2

Background Information: Approximately one year ago staff implemented a development plan to develop units on the
excess land near our existing 33-unit Manor Town Phase |. Staff has engaged architect, engineers and consultants to
work toward develop and funding of a two-story elevator served apartment building containing 20 units. The lot needs
to be re-platted and zoned for the intended use. A right of way is required to be purchased to increase the density of the
units to meet new zoning requirements. This resolution allows for the transfer of funds for the equity contribution currently
contemplated in the Sources of Funds needed for the development.

Recommended Action: Consider the appropriate action regarding Resolution No. TCFC-2020-05: To
Approve a contribution of $655,680 to The Housing Authority of Travis County, Texas for the development of
Manor Town Apartments Phase 2

Alternate Option: The Board of Directors could elect to Not Approve the following Resolution:
Resolution No. SHFC-2020-05:

Fiscal Impact: This represents a drawdown of funds currently in TCFC account to be used for the stated
purpose.

Attachment:
A. Resolution No. TCFC-2020-05

Prepared by:
Robert Onion - Director of Real Estate Development

Approval:

Dk 8. Howord

Patrick B. Howard, CEO/Executive Director




TCFC

Travis County Facilities Corporation

TCFC Action item lIl.A.
July 2, 2020

Resolution No. TCFC-2020-04: To Approve the set-aside of a minimum of 50% of all proceed generated
via “Apartments at Tech Ridge” to be specifically utilized for the development of extremely low income, deeply
affordable housing units.

WHEREAS, There is not enough affordable housing in the United States: and

WHEREAS, According to the Urban Institute, for every 100 extremely low income households, there are only 29
adequate, affordable, and available rental units; and

WHEREAS, Oftentimes, the gap between the amount a building is expected to produce from rents and the amount
developers will need to pay lenders and investors will likely stop deeply affordable housing development before it
even begins; and

WHEREAS, the provision of funding to offset costs related to the development of housing for the extremely low is
paramount.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT The Board of Directors of TCFC hereby:
1. Approves Resolution TCFC-2020-04;

2. Authorizes the CEO / Executive Director to execute all necessary documents and extensions.

Passed and approved the 2 day of July 2020.

DocuSigned by:
‘ €l div karam

Eddie Karam, President, Board of Directors

Attested and approved as to form:

Falt kO oz

Patrick B. Howard, CEO / Executive Director






